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To the Members of PNC Aligarh highways private limited
Report an the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the Ind AS Financial Statements of PNC Aligarh Highways Private Limited
{the "company”], which comprises of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the
statement of Profit and Loss incleding statement of Other Comprehensive Income, and
statement of cash flows and Statement of changes in Equity for the year then ended, and
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesald  Financlal Statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner sa required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted In Indla, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2025, and the statement of Profit and Loss including Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income , and Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then
ended, and summary of significant accounting palicies and other explanatory information.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibility for The Audit of Financial
Statements section of our report. We are Independant of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Indla together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these reguirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information, The other

information comprises the Director's repart but does not Include the Financial Statements
and our auditor's report thereon, i
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Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the
other infarmation and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears 1o be materially misstated.,

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information; we are required to report that fact, We have nothing to report in

this regard.

Responsibility of Management for Financial Statements

The company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section of 134(5])
of the companies” act, 2013 with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordanmce with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section
133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
recards in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting palicies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstaterment, whether due to fraud or errar.

In preparing the Financlal 5tatements, management is responsible for assessing the
company's ability to continue as going concern, disclosing, as applicable matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial
reporiing process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for Audit of Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements
as a whale are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 1o ssue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Sas will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstateaments can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial
Satements.

We give in "Annexure A" a detailed description of Auditor’s responsibilities for Audit of the
Financial Statements.




Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the companies (auditor's report) rules, 2020(“the order”}issued by the
central Government of India in terms of the sub section (11) of the section 143 of the
act, we give in the Annexure B, a statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3 and
4 of the order,

Z. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. 'We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and bellef were necessary for the purposes of our awdit,

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢. The Balance Sheet and the statement of Profit and Loss including statement of
Other Comprehensive Income, and statement of cash flows and Statement of
changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Financial Statements
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information dealt
with in this report are in agreement with the books of accounts.

d. In our gpinion, the aforesaid Financlal Statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with of the Companies
{Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

2, On the basis of the written representations received from the directors az en
March 31, 2025 taken an record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors
Is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms
of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in Annexure C.

E- With respect to the other matters to be included in Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies [Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on it financial
position in its Ind AS financial statements to the Ind AS financial statements, if any.

il. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there wera any material foreseeable losses.

i,
iv. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

W.  This clause is omitted.




Wi,

vil.

Wil

1}

2}

3]

The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to accounts, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested ( either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any
other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities("Intermediarles™), with
the understanding, whether recorded In writing or otherwise, that the
intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or Invest in other
persons of entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
company(*ultimate beneficiary™) or provide any guarantee, security or the fike
on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries;

The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to accounts, no funds have been
received by the company from any person{s) or entitylies), including foreign
entities["Funding Parties™) with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend ar invest In other persons or entities identified In any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the company({“ultimate beneficiary®) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficlaries; and

Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and
appropriate In the clrcumstances; nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub clause (1) and (2]
contain amy material mis-statement.

The caompany has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

As per information and explanations given and based on our examination, which
include test checks the company has used accounting software for maintaining its
books of account which has a feature of recording audit trial (edit log) facility and
the same has operated throughout the vear for all the tranzactions recorded in the
software .Further during the course of our audit we did not come across any
instance of audit trial feature being tampered with ,and the audit trial has been
preserved by the company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

M.Mo.0978E1
Date:19-05-2025
Place of Signature: Agra



“Annexure A" to the independent auditor’s report on even date on the financlal
statements of PNC Aligarh Highways Private Limited for the year ended March 31, 2025

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 5tatements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (3As) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements,
whether due to fraud -or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficlent and appropriate to provide a
basiz for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, a5 fraud may invelve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissicns, misrepresentations, or the owerride of
internal control.

=  Obtaln an understanding of internal control relevant to the awdit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* (Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether 3 material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company's ability to continue as a golng concern. If we conclede that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadeguate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's repart. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern,

# Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on owr
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

For RWVIA & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

FRN: DOO97BN/N500062

(Blulvaskss

CA Rahul Vashisht

Partner™)
M. No. 097881

Date:19-05-2025
Place of Signature: Agra




"Annexure C" to the Independent Auditor's Report on even date on the Financial
Statements of PNC Aligarh Highways Private Limited for the year ended March 31, 2025

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (1) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of PNC Aligarh
Highways Private Limited as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the Financial
Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for internal Financial Controls.

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on these responsibilities include the design, Implementation
and maintenance of adequate Intermal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, Including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors” Responsibikity

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
"Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auwditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, bath applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the institute of Chartered Accountanis of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Mote reguire that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adegquate
internal financial contrals over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Cur audit Involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adeqguacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectivensss. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
oktaining an understanding of internal financial controls owver financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit apinion on the Company's internal financial controls system

over financial reporting.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financlal Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting ang e




preparation of Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the compary; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material mizstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Dpinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financlal controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025.

For RMA & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN: DDO978N/NS00062

Partner
M.No.097881
Date:19-05-2025

Place of Signature: Agra
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PNC Aligarh Highways Private Limited
CIN-U4520304 2018PTCIZ2305
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

T in Lakhs)
AL ak Asat
oliia Motes | Marchat, 2025 | March 31, 2024
ASSETS
[1f  Non-Current Assets
{a} Property, Plant & Equipments 2 20532
|b] Financial Astets
[l Service Concession Receivables 3 a0, 900.E1 39.115.26
{ch Other Mon- Current Asiets
{li Dther Advances 4 G4 57 2,565 51
Sub Total (Non-Current Assets] 31,826.40 42 08176
(2}  Current Assels
{a} Financial Assets
L] Investments 3 13,736.31 £,E550.54
[ Trade Rezsfvables B 160,29 1,036.19
[w) Casharmd Cash Egulvatents 7.1 3,118.66 TL.ES
7] DOrther Bank Balanias 7.2 & 142,00 &, 242 00
¥} Other Financial Assars B 505.E1 HE.213
ib)  Othes Current Assets 9 1,159.39 153.15
Sub Tota! (Current AsseTs) 22,515.45 14,451.35
Total Aszets 54,341 BES 56.533.11
{1} EQUITY AND LLABSLITEES
EQUITY
fal Equity Share Capital 1] GER1.00 E,681.00
(B} Other Equiry i1 {2.272.19) {1,620.88)
Sub Total [Equity) 440881 5.060.12
{2} UABILITIES
MNon - Current LEabilities
ta] Fnancial Liabilities
i Borrowings 12 &4, FTE.05 #7,851.10
(b} Prowisicons 13 1533 14.77
Sub Total [Mon-Current Liabilities]| a4 691.39 47 86587
{3}  Current Liabilities
(a] Fmancial LiabFites
{il  Borrowings 14 3,187.50 287500
(] Trade Payables 15 ITr15 105.14
(i) Other Financial Liability 16 1.751.56 Bl6.259
(b} Other Current Liabilites 17 313 A.4d
ich Provisions 18 223F [ o]
Sub Total (Current Liabikties)| 5,241.66 3,607,12
Total Equity & Liabilities | 54,341.85 56,533.11
Matorial accounting policaes 1

The accomparying notes form an integral part of the these financial statements

in terens of our report of even date attached

For BMA B Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRMN-DO0STEN /N5S00062

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

PME Afigarh Highways Private Umited
Mk o0 r

NebaTain Tallurl Ragupat| Rao
Managing Dinector Dérector
DdM: 10045337 DIN: 1207205

. ~ Agb
Rohit Kumar  Ankita Agrawal
Chief Financial Offlcer Company Secretary
PaN- AMLPFRLITLITL M.No-33482
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PNC Aligarh Highways Private Limited
CiN-U45303DL2018PTCIIRIAE
Statemant of Profit and Loss for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

(¥ in Lakhs)
Year ended Year endad
Feticuie NOtEs| larch31,2025 | March 31,2024
| [Revenue from Operalions 19 G,095.22 512114
Il jOther Income 20 1,310.60 H#15.50
1] Total Incame | 1 § 740082 593954
IV |Expanses :
Employes Benefit Expenses il 154.52 187.21
Flnance Costs 12 IEFI 21 4,086.65
Depreclation & Amortimtion Expenses d 2.74 -
Ofher Expenies 3 LE7L.76 1,106.86
Total Expenses [IV) B, 70924 5,3E0.73
W |Profit/[Loss) Before Tax (V] 70058 558.92
Wl |Tax Expence !
Current Tax 1 164 85 1,010.60
Dieferred Tax 3 2
Taxes of Earliar Years 187.03 106.E1)
Vil |Profitf [Loss) For the Peried [ V- W1 [651.32)| 345.07)
Wil jOther Comprehensiva kncoma
{1} ltems that will not be Reclassified ta Prafid o Loss - -
{ll) Income tax relating to above items - -
i) Comprehensive incoma for the Period | VIl £ VII) [G51.32 [345.07)
Eaming Per Equity Share
Basic & Diluted {in Rs) 24 [mj (0.52)]
Material accoenting policies i

The acoompanying notas form an integral part of the these financlal statements
bn terms of our report of even date attached

For RMA B Agsociates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ERN-D00S T8N/ NSD0062 S50

Okt w@-ﬁ

CA Rahul Vashishiha
Partnar

M. No.-0578E]

Data: 18.05.2025
Place: Agra

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors
PHC Aligarh Highwiays Private Limited

P

Meha ) Talluri Ragupat| Rag

Managing Director Director
Din; 10045337 DN 1207205
Kurmar l'lth hp.nn]
iChief Financial Officer  Compary Secretary
PAN- AMLPRLTITL M, No-33482



PMNC Aligarh Highways Private Limited
CiN-U45 10301201 8PTCI32395
Sratement of Cash Flows For the Year ended March 31, 2025

[T in Lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
i March 31,2025 |  March 31, 2024
A, | Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Met Profit f{Los:) Before Tax & After Exceptional Hems 700,58 E58.92
Adjustment far:
Finance Cost 3,879.21 4,086.65
Depreciation 274 -
interast Income |393.38) {290.95)
Gainfloss on Redemption of Mutual Funds (352.87) 1235.34)
Gain lass an Falr valuathon of Investments 15553'DJ {29223
Operating Profit / (Loss] before Working Capital Changes 3,280.98 3,827.07
Adjustment of Changes in Werking Capltal
increasef|Decrease] in Trade Payables 17200 (55.19))
increasef{Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities (3323 539
increase/|Decrease] in Trade Recelvables B75.590 (BB2.79)
increasef{Decrease] in Mon -Current Financial Assets 821445 6,909.68 I
Increasef|Decrease] in Other Current Financial Ascets (3500580 {111.53)
increasef{Decrease] in Other Non -Current Assets 2,767.10 2,023.13
increasef{Decrease] In Mon -Current Provisions .56 2.63
Increase/|Decrease] In Current Provisions 13.08 (101.40))
incraasef{Decrease] in Current Financial Liabilities 1,135.28 65,47
Increasaf{Decrease] In Current Assets {1006 24)| (24 76)|
Cash Generated from/{used) from Operating Activities 15.104.21 11,661.71
Direct Taxes Paid B {2,057.16)| (903 58]
Cazh (used in |/ from Operating Activities [A) 13,047.06 10,757.73
B. | Cash Flaw from Investing Activities
Purchase af Mutual Funds (14 BE0.00) (12,171 94}
Sale of Mutual Funds 1125079 851017
Purchase of Fixed Assets [23.66) .
Interest Incomia 353.38 25055
Investment in Fixed Daposit - (P08, 00
Met Cash | used in) / from investing Acthvities [B) [3,.259.49) (3.674.63)
C. | Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Repayment of Term Loan (2,E6Z.55) {2 SE7.46)
Finance Cost (3.879.21) {4, 086.65)
Met Cash | used Inj / from Financing Activities [C) [B,741.75] (7.074.12)
Met Cash Increase in Cash & Cash Equivalents [A+B+C) 3,045.81 4.78
Cash & Cash Equivalents in Beginning of during the year TLBS 65.07
Cash & Cash Equivalents as at the End of during the year 3,118.66 785

The accompanylng notes 1 to 37 form an integral part of the these financizl statements

In terms of our report of even date attached

For EMA & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants ey
FRM-00097EN/NS00062 1

@:ﬁi'—‘f‘, Uﬂbﬁf‘im I_I
CA Rahul Vashishtha A
Partner
M_No.-097881

Date: 15.05. 2025
Placi: Agra

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors
PHC Aligarh Mighways Private Limited

e

Meha lain Tallurl Ragupat] Rao
Managing Director Director
Dir: 10045237 DIN: 1207205

f"f r'| 1 tr"-\.-
w2
hit Kumar Ankita Agrawal

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
PAN- AMILPRATITL M.No-33482



PHC Allgarh Highways Private Limited
CIN-U452030L2018PTCI3 2395
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2025

. Equity Share Capktal

(¥ in Lakhs)
As at Changes during the Asat
April 01, 2024 Vear March 31, 2025
B,631.00 - 6 681,00
% in Lakhs]
As at Changes during the A at
April 01, 2023 year March 31, 2024
6.681.00 = 6,681.00
B. Other Equity
(¥ in Lakhs)
Heserves & Surplus
LRI Retained earnings Tatal
Balance as at April 1, 2024 {1,620.88) (1,620.88)
| Profit for the year 1651.32) [651.32)
Other Comprehensive Income for the year = -
| Total comprahensive income for the period 2,272.19) (2,272.19)
Balance as ai March 31,2025 2.272.15) [2,272.19)
(¥ in Lakhs)
i Reserves & Surplus
sickicupl Retained garnings | Total
Balance as at April 1, 2023 (1,275.81) [1,275.B1)
Profit for the year 134507 E’:'I-ﬂﬁ-l]?]l
Other Comprehensive Income for the year - -
Share Application Money pending for Allatment - -
Total comprehansive income for the pericd {1,620.88) [1,620.88)
Balance as at March 31,2024 {1,620.88) {1,620.88)
The accampanying notes 1 to 37 form an mtegral part of the these finencial statements
In terms of our report of even date attached For and an Behalf of the Board of Directors
PFNC Aligarh Highways Private Limited
For BEMA & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants 2=Ta W P Meha lain  Talluri Ragupati Rao
FRN-DO097EM/NS00062 R Managing Director Director
. T4 ) _ﬁ Oz 10045237 DiM: 1207205
@LM \/ Mﬁ"} El 'i’
L 5.9 ¥ B
CA Rahul Vashishtha b ; A
Partnet e : !
M.No.-097881 ohit Kumar Ankita Agrawal
Date: 15.05,2025 Chief Financial Officer  Company Secrotary

Place: Agra FAM- AMLPRIFITL M.No-33482



PMNC Aligarh Highways Private Limited [the Company) is domicile and incerporated in India and is whelly ewned subsidiary
company of PNC Infraholdings Limited, The company is engaged in infrastruecture development of “four Lanning of Aligarh -Eanpur
Saction from Km. 186,000 [ Design Chainage 195.733) to Km 229,000 (Design Chainage 240.897) (Pkg -il from Bhadwas - kalyanpur]
of NH-91 in the state of Uitar Pradesh on Hybrid Annuity Mode under Bharatmala Parlyoina.

1.Basts of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared to comply In all material aspects with Indian accounting standards (Ind AS) notified
under sec 133 of the companies act 2013 (the Act) read with Companies (Indian accounting standard} Rules, 2015 and other
ritlévant provision of the Act and rules framed thereunder,

The Financial statements have been prepaned on a historicad cost basis except for certain financial assets & Labllitles measured at
fadr wakee.

The financial statements gre presented in Indlan rupees (INR] with value rounded off 1o the nearedt lakhs with two decimals,
thersaf, except otheraiss indicated,

2. Significant Aceounting policies sdopted by company in preparation of financial statements

2.1 Property, plant and equipment

Subseguent Lo initial recognition, property, plant and equipment are slated at cost net of accumulated depreciation and
aecumulated impairment losses, i any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing
costs for leng-tarm constructian projects i the recognition eriberia are met. When significant parts of plant and equigrment are
regulred to be replaced at intervals, the company depreciates them separately based on thelr specific useful lives. The carmying
amaunt of the reploce part accounted for as a separate asset previousky B derecognized. Uikewise, when a majer Inspection is
performed, Its cost s recognized In the carrying amount of the plant and eguipment as a replacement I the recognition criteria
are satisfied, All other repair and maintenance cost are recognized In the statement of profit and loss when Incwrred. The present
value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is inchueded in the cost of the respective asset if tha
recognition criteria for 3 provision are mat.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on written down valie basis ss per the rate dedived on the basgiz of
useful life and mathod prescribed under schedule-i of the companles Act, 2013,

The residual valuas, wselul lives and mathods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each reporting
date and adjusted prospectively.if appropriate,

Impairment of non-financial ddet

The carrying amounts of other non-financal assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date i there is any ndication of
impairmant based on internal fexternal factors. An asset is treatad as impalred when the carrying amount excesds |ts recoverable
walup, The recoverable amount s the greater of the asset's net selling price and value In use. In assewssing value In use, the
astimated future cash flows are discounted to the present value using a per-tax discount rate that reflects current market
ascessment of the thme value of money and risks specific to the attets. An impairment loss is charged to the statement of profi
and lass in the year [n which an asset s ldentified as impaired. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying
:muunt of the asset over its remaining useful life. The Impairment lnss racognized In prior secounting periods i reversed by
statemnent of profit and loss if there has been a change in the estimate of recoverable amount,




2.2 Service Concession Agreements

The Company constructs & upgrades infrastructure (construction or upgrade services] used to provide & public servica and
oparates and maintains that infrastructure [operation senvees) for a spedfied periced of tima.

These arrangements may include Infrastructure used in & public-to-private service concession arrangement for its entire useful
life. Under Appendix C to lnd A5 115 — Service Concession Arrangements, these arrangements are accounted for based on tha
nature of the consideration. The Financial asset model s used to the extent that the operator has an unconditional contractual
right to receive cash or another financlal asset from or at the direction of the grantor for the construction services, If the company
performs more than one service (e, construction or upgrede services and operation services) under a singhe contract or
arrangement, consideration received or receivable ks aliocated by reference to the relative fair values of the services defivered,
when the amounts are separately identifiable,

in the financial asset meded, the amount due from the grantor meets the identification of the receivable which is measured at fair
value. It is subseguenthy measured at amortized cost. The amount indtially recognized plus cumulative interest on that amount is
calculated using the effective interest method, Any asset carried under concession agreements i derecognized on disposal or
when no future economic benefits ane expected from its future use or disposal or when contractual right to the linancial assets
expires,

Revenws related to 5CA:
Revenue related to construction under a service conoession amangement is recognized based on the stape of completion of the
wark parformad.

2.3 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized (o the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will llow and the revenue can be reliably
messured. Revenue |5 meeswred at the fair vadue of the consideration received or receivable, taking inte account contractually
defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or dutles coflected on behalf of the povernment exscept to the extent stated
otherwise,

The compary had recognized Finance Inceme on the outitanding balance of trade receivables as a part of revenue frgm
operdtions,

2.4 Interast Income
For all debt instruments measured either at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income
is recorded wsing the effective interast rate (EIR). Interest ingome is induded in finance income in the statement of profit and loss,

2.5 Taxes on Income

Current Tax

The income tax expenses or credit for the period is the tax payable only current period’s taxable income based on the applicable
incomé tax rake adjusted by changes and deterred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporany différences and to unused tax
lodes, The current tay charge is caloulated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantially enacted at tha end of the reporting
period,

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax s provided in full, using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
lighilities and their carnying amounts for financial statements at the reporting date. Deferred tax i determined using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the relatesd
deferrad tax assats is realized or the deferred tax liabilities ls settled.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed 8t each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be avallable to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized
deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized fo the extent that it has become probable that
future taxable profits will aliow the deferred tax asset to be recoverad,




Deferred tax relating te Iems recognived outside profit or loss s recognized outside prodit or loss (either in other comprehenshe
Income ar in equity], Deferred tax items are recognized in cormelation to the underlying transaction either in OC or directly in
Euity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if 3 legally entorceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilites and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Minimum alternative tax (MAT) credit is recognized as deferred tax asset anly when and to the extent there s convincng evidence
that thie company bill pay nermal income tax during the specified perod. such assel |s reviewed at each balance sheet date and
the carrying ammount of MAT credit asset is wrltten down to the extend there is no longer the corvincing evidence to the effect
that the company bill pay normal income tax during the spedified period

2.6 Forelgn currency transactions

The company’s financial statements are presented in INR which is slso the company’s functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions are recorded on initial recognition in the functionsl eurrency. Using the exchange rate at the date of the ransaction:
At gach balance sheet date, foreign eurrency monetary items are réported using the closing exchange rate. Exchange differences
that arise on setdement of monetary items or on reporing at each balance sheet date or the company’s monetary items at the
closing rate are recopnized as income or expenses (n the period In which they arise. Non-monetary items which are carmied at
historical cost denaminated i a forelgn currency are reporied using the exchange rate at the date of transaction,

1.7 Cash and cash eguivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and other shert term highly liquid investments with an eriginal
maturity of three months or less that are readily convertible bo a known amount of cash and are subject to an ingignilicant risk of
changes in value,

For the purpose of the statement of cash Nlows and cash eguivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, &5 defined above:
Mat of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the company’s cash management,

1.8 Earndngs per share

Baslc earnings per share are caloulated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders (after
deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by tha weighted aversge number of eguity shares outstanding during the
pericd, For the purpose of caloulating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutve
pobential equity shares excopt when the results would be antidilutive.

2.9 Provisions, Contingent liabdities and contingent assets

Provisions

Prowisions are recognired when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive} as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflowr of resources embodying economic benefite will be required to settle the abdigation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The expense refating to @ provision i prasentad in the statement of profit and loas.

I the effect of the time value of money 5 material, provisions are discounted using @ current pre-tax rate that reflects, whien
approgriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognized as a finance cost.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. IF It Is no longer probabde that
an cutflow of resources embodylng economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, the provishon is reversed.

Contingent Liabilities and Contingent assets
A contingent liability is @ possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence ar
non-occy ona or mora uncertain future events beyond the control of the company or a present obligation which s not




recognized because it is not probable that an outfiow of resources will be required bo settie the obligation. A contingent liability
also arises in extramely rare cases where thero is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannol be measured reliably.
information on contingent Babilites is diiclosed in the nates to the financial staternents, unless the possibliity of an cutflow of
resources embodying economic benelits is remote.

A contfegent asset |s 8 possibhe asset that arises from the past events and whose existence will be confirmed by the ooccurmence or
non-gecurrence of ong or more wncertain future events not within the control of the company. Contingent assets are nof
recognized but are disclosed in the financial statements.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets are reviawad &t each reporting date,
2.10 Salesf value added taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on Incurring expenses

Wihen the tax incurred on & purchase of assets or services 1s not recoverable from the texation authorlty, In which case, the tas
paid is recognized as part of the cost of scquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable- When receivables
ard payables sre stated with the amount of tax Included. Thenet amaent of tax recoverable fram, of poyable to, the taxation
authority s included as part of recelvables or payables in the balance sheet.

2.11 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acguisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized a5 part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs ane
expensad in the period in which they oocur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an antity incurs in connection
with the barrawing of funds. Borrowing cost also ncludes sxchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the
Borrowing souts,

.12 Employes benefits

Provident Fund: The confribution to provident fund is in the nature of defined confribution plan. The Cempany makes
contribution to statutory provident fund in acoordance with the Employess Provident Fund and Miscellanecis Provisions Act,
1952, The cankribution paid or payable i3 recognized as an expense in the period in which services are rendered,

Gratuity [Funded): Gratuity |5 in the nature of defined benefit plan. The cost & determined wsing the projected unit credit method
with actuarial veluation being carried at cash at each Balance Sheet date by an independent sctuary, The retirement benefits
obligation recognlzed In the Balance Sheet represent the present value of defined benefit abligathon as adjusted for recognized
past service cost Actuarlal galns and losses are recognized in full in the other comprehensive income Tor the perbod in which they
GCCUr.

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months rendering services are classified as short term employee benefits.
Benefits such as salaries, wages, short-term compensated absences, performance incenbives et and the expected cost of bonus,
ex-gratia are recogniced during the period in which the amployee renders related senvica,

Fayments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognized as an expense when employess have rendered the
sendice entltling them o the contribution.

.13 Finandial Instruments

A financial instrzment ks any contract that gives rise to & financlal asset of one entity and a financial llabllity or eguity instrument of
another entiby.

Flrancials Asset

Initial recognition and meisurement

Financiel assets are recognized when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the inatrument, The campany
datermines the dassification of Its financlal assets ak inltal recognition, All finandal astets are recognized initially at Fair value plus
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the soguisition of the financlal asset except for flnancial assets classified as falr

HW or loss.
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Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measuremednt, financlal assets are classifled In three categortes:
(i} Fimancial Asset at amortized cost

{fijFmancial Asset at Fair Value through OO [FYTOC)

{iilJRnancal Asset at Fair value through PRL [FUYTPL|

The subsequent mieasurement of financial asset depends on their cassification, The classification depends on the company's
business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

Financial Asset at amortized cost
Finandal Asset’ is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

(al The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

(b} Cash flows represent solely for repayment of principal and interest.
Afver initial measuremaent, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
mathod, Amortized cost is calculated by taking inbo account any discount or premium on acquisition of asset and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. Income from these fnancial assets s included in interest income using the effective interest rate
method,

Financial Asset at Falr value through OCI (FYTOCI)
"Financial Asset’ s classified as at the FVTOC! if both of the following oriteris are met:
[a] The objective of the business moded is achieved by collecting contractual cash fiows and selling the financial assets, and
[b) Theasset's contractual cash flows repreaent solely for repayment of principal and interest. Financial Asset induded within
the FYTOC category are measured initlally as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Falr value movemeantis are
recagnized in the other comprehensive income (DO

Financial Assat at fair Value through P&L
FWTPL is a resldual category for Finandal Assets. Amy financial asset, which doas not meet the criteria for categorlzation as at
amoartized cost or a5 FYTOCL, |s classified as at FVTPL,

In addition, the company may elect to designate a Rnancial asset, which otherwise meets amortized cost or PYTOC] criteria, as ot
FYTPL. However, such election is allowed enly if doing 50 reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency
(referred to as ‘sccounting mismatch’].

Equity Instruments
All equity Inwesoments in scope of ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. The company may make an imevocable election to
present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair valee. The Company makes swch election on an instrument
by-instrurment basis. The dassification i made on initial recognition and is inrevocabla.

If the group decides to dassify an equity instrument as at FVTOC!, then all fair value changes on the nstrument, excluding
dividends, are recognized in the OCL

De-recognition of Financial asset
A financial asset [or, where applicable, a part of a financdal asset or part of & group of simiar financial assets) s primarily
derecognized when:

] The righits to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

il The company has transferred its rights to receive cash fows from the asset

iii] The company retains the contractual fghts to received cash flows from the finandial asset but assumes a contractual

obligation to pay cash flows to one or mora racipiants,

Where the company hes transferred the asset, the company evalustes whether 1t has translerred substantially all risks and
rawards of ownership of the financlal assets. In such eases, the finandal asset (s derecognired. Where the entlty has not
transfeprad substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financizl asset, the financial asset is not derecognized.




Where the entity fas neither ransferred & finendal asset mor reteng substantially afl risks and rewards of ownership of financial
ausers, the financial asset |5 derecognized If the company has not retatned contrad of the assat. Where the company has retains
control of the financial asset, the asset s continued to be recognized to the extent of continuing involverment In the flnanclal asset

impairmeant of financial assets

In per Ind AS 109, the company applies expected credit loss (ECL) medel for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on
the lollowing financial assets and credit rish exposure;
fal Financial assets that are measured at omortized cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank
balance,
ib] Financiad assets that are measured as at FVTOCO
(<] Leasereceivables underind 45116
(d] Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial agset that result from transactionsthat are
within the scope of Ind A% 115 (referred to &5  ‘contractual revenue receivables’ In these
Hlustrative finandal stetements)
(2} Loan commitments which are not measured as at FUTPL
(f] Financiad guarantes contracts whbch are not measured & 3t FYTPL

For recognition of impalrment loss of financial assets and rick exposure, the Company determines whether there has been a
significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL ks used to
provide for impalmmeant less. if credit risk has increased significantly, Bfetime ECL is used.

Ina subsequent period, if credit quality of the instrument improves such that there ks no longer a slgnificant Increase In credit risk
since initial recognition, then the company reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected eredit losses resulting from &l pessible default svents over the expected life of a
financial instrurnent.

Financial Liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial llabilities are recognized wihen the compeany becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The
compary determines the classification of financial Fability 3t initial recognition. Al financial abdlities are recognized initially at fair
walue plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial liability except lor financial Gabilities
classifled as fair value through profit or loss,

Subsequent Measurement
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial Babdlities are classified In two categories:

Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR
migthod, Gairs and losses are recognized in the statemaent of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecopnized as well as through
the EIR amortization process, Amortized cost is caloslated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amartization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss,

Financlal Nablllties measured at falr value through profit or loss

Finandal liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include finandal liabilities held for treding and financlal lisbdlities designated
upon initial recognition ai a1 fair vales through profit or loss, Financlal liabilties are dassified as held for trading I they are
Incurred far the purpose of repunchasing in the near tenm. Fnandial fabilities at fair value through profit or loss are carried In the
statement of financial position at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in finance income or finance costs in the




De-recognithon

A financial [iability is derecognized when the obligation under the liahility is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an exsting liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange o modification i treated B3 the de-recopgnition of the arginal liablity and the
recognition of @ new liability, The difference in the respective camylng amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Fair Value Measurament
The Company measures financial instrusnents at fair value at each reporting date,

Fair wvalue is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an crderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The falr value maaswrement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the
asset or transfer the Bability takes place either;

- In the principal market for the assel or Hability, or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the aset o Bability.

The princlpal or most advantageous market must be accessible to the company.

A falr value measurement of & non-linancial asset takes into account a market participant’s abllity to generate economic benefits
by using the asset In Its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest
and best use.

The entity uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the droumstences and for which suffident data are avallable tw
measure fair valwe, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All azsets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disdosed In the financizl statements are categorized within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest bevel input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1: CGuoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identicad assets or liabiBtles

Level 2: Valuation technigues for which the lowest levl input that is $iEl‘ﬁﬂﬁl‘|! 1o the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly ohservable

Level 3: Valuatlon technigues for which the owest level Input that is tignificant (o the fair value measurement i unobservable
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets & |iabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and the risks of the asset or liability and the level of the falr value higrarchy ez sxplained abave.

2.14 Government Grants

Government grants [except those existing on transition date) are recognized where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attached conditions will be compliod with. Whan the grant relates to an expensa Item, it s recognized a5
income an & fystermnatic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. When
the grant relates toon asset, it i recopnized &2 incame in egual amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset,

When the company recelves grants of non-monetary assets, The asset and the grant are recorded at fair value amounts and
released to the statement of profit of loss over the expectsd useful life in a pattern of consumption of the benefit of the
underlying asset by equal annual installments,

1. Significant estimates, judgments and assumptions

The pregaration of financia] statermnents requires management to exercise judgment in applying the company’s accounting policies.
It aiso requires the use of estimated snd assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses
and the accompanying disclosures Including disclesure of contingent liabilities, Actual results may differ from these estimates.




Estimates and underfying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, with revisions recognized in the period in which the
estimares are revised and tn any future periods affected.

3.1 Contingencias and Commitments

In the normal course of business, contingent Rabilities may arise from ftigation and other claims against the company. Potentlal
fiabilities that have a low probability of crystalizing or are very difficult to quantity reliably, are treated as contingent fabilities.
Such labilities are disclosed in the notes, if any, but are not provided for in the financial statements, There can be no assurance
regarding the final oulcome of these legal procesdings.

3.2 Impairment testing

i ludgment is also required in evaluating the likefihood of collection of customer debt after revenus has been recognized.
This evaluation requires estimates to be made, induding the level of provision to be made for amounts with uncertain
FOCOv Ty pl'-ﬂﬂlﬂ. Provigions are based on historical trends in the percentage of debts which ade not recovered, ar on
rore details reviews of individually significant balanoes.

i,  Determining whether the carrying amount af these aisets hay any indicetion of impairment alsa reguires judgment. If an
Indication of impalrment is dentified, further judgment 5 reguired to assess whether the carrying amount can be
supported by the net present value of future cash flows forecast to be derived from the asset. This forecast Involves cash
flow projections and selecting the appropriate discount rate.

3.3 Taxes
2. The company's @@ change |s the sum of the total current and deferred tax charges. The calculation af the company’s total
tax charge necessarily Invohves 3 degree of estimation and judgment in respect of certaln ltems whose tax treatment
cannot be finally determined untd resolution has been reached with the relevant tax authority or, as appropriate, through
a formal legal process.

b. Accruads for tax contingencics requine management to make judgments and estimates in relation o tax audit issves andg
CXPOSUres.,

¢ The recognition of deferred tax assets is based upon whether it is more likely than not that sufficient and suitable taxable
profits will be available in the future against which the reversal of temporary differences can be deducted, Where the
temporary differences are related to losses, the availability of the losses to offser against lorecast taxable profits is also
considered, Recognition therefore invohves judgment regarding the future finandal performance of the particular legal
antity or tax company in which the defarred tax asset has been recognized.

3.4 Fair valua measurerment

The falr value of finandal instruments that are pot traded in an active markel i determined uting valustion techriguees. |n
applying the valsation technigues, management makes maximum use of market inputs and used edtimates snd aumptions that
are, a5 far as possble, consistent with observable data thet market participants would use in pricing the Instrument. \Where
applicable data is not observable, management uses it best estimate about the ssumptions that market participants would
miake. These estimates may vary form the actual prices that would be achleved In an arm’s length transaction at the reporting
date. For details of the key assumptions (Refer note no-27).
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PNLC Aligarh Highways Private Limited
CIN-U45203002018PTCIZ2395
Motes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended Mardh 31, 2025

1. Property, Plant & Equipments

{T In Lakhs)

Particulars

Flant &
equEipmEnis

Total

| Gross Carrying Value
At Aprid 01, 2024
Adidition During the Yoar

|Disposal / Adjustments

11.41

1225

A= At March 31, 2025

11.41

13.25

Accumulated Depreciation
AL Aprll 01, 2024

Addition During the Year
|Disposal f Adfustrnents

1461

113

i.61

113

Met Carrying Value

As At March 31, 2025
as at March 31, 2025




PMC Aligark Highways Private Limited
CIN-LM5203DLI01BPTCIZTING
Notes to the Financlal Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Mote 3: Other Mon Current Financial Assets

(% in Lokhs)
As at As at
Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Service Concession Recelvables 30.,500.81 39,115.26
Total 30,900,581 35,115.26
Mete 4: Other Mon Current Assels
(T in Lakhs)
particulars b M

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Recoverable from Government Authorities

Input Tax Credit - [G5T) - 2. 767.10
Advance Tax & Tax Deducted at Source 891.09 185.83
Cither Advances
Security for Electricity 13.57 13,57
Total 804,67 1,966.51
Mote 5: Investments
[T in Lakhs)
Particulars AR A
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Irvestrments in Mutual Funds 13,236.31 2698 94
Tivta| 13 31 8.638.54
el Az at As at
e March 31, 2025 Barch 31, 2024
Apgregate Book Value of quoted investments 1268101 8,286.18
Aggragate market value of guoted investments 13,236.31 8.658.54
Aggregate book value of unguoted investrents - =
|Aggregate amount of impairment on value of investments . -
Mote 6: Trade Recehvables
[ in Lakns)
As at Az at
Particulars
: March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Mational Highways Authority of India 16025 103619
Total| 160.25 1,035.19

CAoTe ) .
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PNC Aligarh Highways Private Limited
CiN-Ua52030L0IBPTCIARI0S

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule

Period

Az at
Mazrch 31,

2025

Azt
March 31, 2024

Undisputed Trade Recelvables- Consldered Good

Lass than & Moths
G Months to 1 Year
1Year to 2 Yeors
2¥ears to 3 Years
More than 3 Years

160.29

1,036.19

|Undisputed Trade Receivables- Which Have Significant Increass

Legs than & Months
B Maonths ta 1 Year
1¥ear to 7 Years

2 Years to 3 Years
Mare than 2 Years

(Undisputed Trade Receivables- Credit Impairad

Leis than & Manths
& Months to 1 Year
1Y¥ear to 2 Years
2Years 1o 3 Years
Muave than 3 Years

Disputed Trade Receivables- Considered Good

Less than b Months
B Manths ta 1 Year
1 ¥ear to 2 Years

2 Years to 3 Years
hore than 3 Years

| Disputed Trade Receivables- Which Have Significant Increase

Less than & Months
B Mantha ba 1 Year
1 Year to 2 Years

2 Years to 3 Years
More than 3 Years

Disputed Trade Recelvables- Credit impaired

Less than & Months
B Monihs to 1 Year
1 Year to 2 Years

2 Years 1o 3 Yaarg
More than 3 Years

Mote 7.1 : Cash & Cash Equivalents

{T in Lakhs)

Particulars

A5 3L

March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Cach & Cash Equivalents
Cash in Hand

Balances with Banks
Current Accounts
Fixed Depaosits (having original maturiby less than 3 months]

n.83

B7.53

3,050.00

036

22.49
50.00

Tital

3,

118.66

T1.8B5
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PNC Aligarh Highways Private Limited
CIN-UA5203DL2018PTCI32395
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Mete 7.2 : Other Bank Balances

(¥ in Lakhs)
As at Asat
Particulars
i March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Balances with Banks
Fixed Deposits (having orlginal maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 months) 4,242.00 424200
Total 4,247 00| 4, 24200
Mote 8 : Other Financial Assets
(T in Lakhs)
AT 3t Az ot
Particulars
i March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Acerued Interedt on Fixed Deposits 508.81 248.23
Total| 558.81 248.23|
Nota 9 : Dther Current Assets
[T in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Sdvance fo Vendors 74,73 6,09
Prepaid Expenses oLg2 0.28
Other Advances 2.07 20,40
G5T Cash Balance 46065 126.57
GE5T Input Tax Credit 2154 -
Tatal| 1,159.39 153.15




PRC Aligarh Highways Private Limited
CIN-U45203D1L201EPTC332305
Hotes 1o the Financlal Staterments for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Mate 10 : Share Capital

As at As at
SRR March31,2005 | March 31, 2024
Authorized
6, 70,0000 (P Y 6,70,00,000] Equity Shares of R410/- Ench &, TO0U0 &, 700.00
Equity Shares - lssued, Subscribed & Pald up
6,68, 10,000 {7/ 6,68, 10,000) Equity Shares of Re.10/- each 6,681 .00 £,581.00
Motes 10,1
{a) Recondciliation of the Shares Outstanding at the Beginning and at the End of the
Reporting Year
Particulars g s
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
At the Beginning of the Year 6,68,10,000 E,GE, 10,000
issued During the Year - -
Dutstanding at the End of the Year 6,68, 10,000 6.68,10,000
Detalls of Shares Held by Promoters
As at A5 at
Mame of Promoter March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Mo of Shares Mo of Shares
PHC Indratach Limited 10 10
PNC Infra Holdings Limited 6,58, 09,550 B,68,09,990
As at Asat
Hama of Promoter March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
‘}EH-uldin!I- £ I'IDHEI.F.
PHC infratech Lmited - -
PHLC Infra Hl;||I=|iI'IEE Limitad 100 100

Rights and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Caompany has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥ 10 per share. Each sharehalder is eligitle for one vote per share
hald. bn case any dividend is proposed by the Board of Directors the same |s subject to the approval of the shareholders in the enguing
Annuat General Mepting, except in the case of Interim Dividend. There are no bonus shares/share issuad for consideration othar than

uﬂ'l/p‘:ﬂiﬂimm back since the company ml:-nrp-ural:a;



PNC Aligarh Highways Private LUmited
CIN-UA5203DL201BPTCI32305
Mates tothe Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Mote 11 : Oiher Equity

- Retained Earnings {% In Lakhs)
Ag at Az at
PRLEAIA R March 31,2025 | March 31,2024
|Opaning Balanca 11,620.88) (1,275.81)
Met Profit for the Year (B51.32} 1245.07)

|Clasing Balance [2.272.19) [1,620.88)




PMNC Aligarh Highways Private Limited
CIN-UAS203DL201EPTCI32395
Maobes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Mote 13: Borrowings
% in Lakhs}
As at A5 ak
S e March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
{A) Secured
Term Loan from bank 41, 444.55 44.3&?.10
Less ¢ Current Maturities of Long Term Deibt 3,182.50 2, 875,00
3B 257.05 41.,432.10
{B} Unsacurad

Unsecured Loan from Related Party™® §,419.00 G,419.00
Total| 44,676.05 47,851.10

* Refer Note-32

MNature of security and terms of repayments for long term borrowings:-

BAuiz Bank Limited
{A} Mature of sacurity -

{i} First charge on all the Company's immaovable assets/ movable assets [ except project assets], If any , both present and future.
{ii] First charge ower all revenue and receivables of the Company's from the project or otherwise.
{iii] First charge over the rights, title and interest of the Company's refated to the project from all contracts, insurances, licenses,

im to and other all project agreement.

{iv] First charge over all the banks accounts of the Company including the Escrow acoounts and the sub accounts.
{¥] First chiarge on all intangibles of the borrower both present & future save and except the project assets.
{wl] A first chasge by way of assignment or otherwise creatbon on security interest in all the right, title, Interest, benefits, clalms,

and demands.

|viii) Pledge of shares held by the promaoter and or any other person aggregating to 51% |

Mote- The aforesaid shall be collectively referred to the "Security”. The above ssourity will rank Pari passu interse amongst the

Lenders.

Collateral Security- NIL
Personal/Corporate Guarantes- MIL

(B) Terms of Repaymant
1.Axis Bank [Lead Bank)

(1] 27 urzgqual half vearly instaliments commencing after 7 months from date of Scheduled commercial operation date |

(i} Rate of Interest -Base Rate -D15% p.a. [Currantly B.40% pa.)

2.Central Bank

(i) 24 unequal half yearly installments commencing after 7 months from date of Scheduled commercial operation date |

(i} Rate of Interest - 1 year MOLR 8.05% plus 1.10% (Currently 3.15% p.a)

J.HFCL Bank

(i} 24 unequal half yearly instaiments commiencing after? months from date of Scheduled commercial operation date

{ii) Rate /-gﬂ-n‘lﬁ-;nq-ﬁ.ase Rate B.65% (6.5%+2.15%)

EnD & ok




PMC Alsgarn Highways Private Limited
CIN-UM52030DLI0LAPTCIA230E
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Mote 13 : Provesions

(¥ In Lakhs)
As 3t As at
P siubiy Mareh 31,2025 | March 31,2024
Employes Benefits
Provision fior Gratulty [Refer Mote-35) 12 Bh 12.00
Prawision for Leave Encashment [Refer Note-3i5) 2.47 2,70
Tatal| 15,33 14.77
Mote 14 :Short Term Borrowings
(¥ in Lakhs)
As at Az at
Farticula
o March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Current Maturity of Long Term Debis 3,187.50 287500
Total 3,187.50 2,875.00
Mote 15 : Trade Payables
(T in Lakhs)
Az ot Asat
Particula
g March 31,2025 | March 31,2024
bicro and Small Enterprises®
Dues ather than Micro and Small Enterprisess 277.15 105.14
Total| 277.15 105.14

* The disclasure in respect of the amount payable to enterprizes which have pravided goods and servlees to the Company and
which gqualify under the definition of micro and small anterprises as defined under Micro, Small and Medium Development Act
2006 has been made in the financial statement as 8t March 31, 2025 based on the information received and available with the
company, On the basis of such infermation, no Interest is payable to any micro,small and medium enterprises. Auditors have

relied upon the informations provided by the Company,
Fincludes T15E.86 Lakhs payable to related party [P/ T 84.35) Refer Note no -26)

The Company " expésaere to currency and lquidity risks related to the trade payable is disdlosed note no-28

Trade Payables Ageing Schedule Pericd

Asat
March 31, 2025

s at
March 31, 2024

Oto I Year

1 Yearto 2 Years
2 Years to 3 Years
blore than 3 Years

BSME

Ote 1 Year

1 Year to 2 Years

2 Years to 3 Years
hlore than 3 Years

10514

0o 1 Year

1 Year to 2 Years
2 Years 16 3 Years
hore than 3 Years

Disoputed Dues of MSME

Oto 1 Year
1¥earto 2 Years
2 Years 103 Yeaars
hore than 3 Years

Disoputed Dues of Others

e

Oy

o ¥



PNC Aligarh Highways Private Limited

CIN-U45203DL201BPTCIZ2I95
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025
Wote 16 : Other Financial Liiability
(% in Lakhs)
Az at Az at
Partie
o3 March 31,2005 | Mareh 31, 2024
Expenses Payabie 452,31 EO07.67
Brtention Payahble 11158 859,24
Prowision for Current Tax[2024- 1,164,856 -
Salary Payable 12.80 16.38
Total| 1.751.56 616.25
Note 17 : Other Current Liabilities
(% in Lakhs)
Asat Asat
Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Statutory Dues Payable 313 B.dd
Total] 3.13 [T
Note 1B : Provisions
(¥ in Lakhs)
As at As at
Particul
s March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Employee Benefit
Provision for Gratulty (Refer Note-35) 371 339
Provision for Leave Encashment [Refer Note-36] QLS 095
Others
Provlsion For Expenses 1776
Total 2232 4.24
Mote 19 : Revenue from Operations
(¥ in Lakhs}
Year ended Yoar ended
Partlculars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Construction Revenus 1,796.54 58.40
Interest Income on Sendce Concession Recelvable 4,302.68 5.062.74
Total| §,099.22 5,121.14

A



PNC Aligarh Highways Private Limited
CIN-UM520301L2018PTCI 323595
Motes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Mote 20 : Dther Income

[T in Lakhs)
Year ended Yearendad
Partlculars
March 21, 2025 March 31, 2024
interest on Fixed Deposit 393.34 250,95
Galn/(Loss) on Redernption of Mutual Fund 352.87 23534
Galn/[Loss] on Fair Valuation of Mutual Fund 555.30 -
interest on Income tax refund 9.05 242 23
Total| 1,310,560 818.50
Mote 21 : Employes Benefit Expenses
(¥ in Lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
Particiilars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Salary & Wages Expensed 151.08 183.72
EPF & Other Contributions 3.45 349
Total) 154.52 187.21
Note 22 : Finance Costs
(¥ in Lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars
2 March31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Bank Charges BE1 11.36
Interest Expenses on Term Loan 3, 870,60 4,075.30
Total 3,873.21 4 D86.65
Note 23 : Othar Expenses
{Tin l,lHt!l
Year ended Year ended
Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
{Construction Expenses 2,156.50 S531.BA
Site Expenses 305,77 341.63
|Hire Charges 11.64 4238
Round Off Differance {uflalu}] 0.25
Legal & Professional Expenses B.15 B.O7
Insurance charges 1.00 1.00
Electricity Charges 168,67 156.21
Sub-Contracting Exp 1.07 0.6E
Mobile, Telephone & Internet Charges 0.43 0.15
Labrour Cass 10.21 10,21
Filling Faes 0,04 462
Interest Expenses on Statutory Dues 0.02 0.33
Difiee Maintanance Expenses 166 283
Mess Expenies 4.9 501
Travelling-Damestic 1oL ie&d
Audit Fees 130 -
Total| 2,672.76 1,106.86 |




PNC Aligarh Highways Private Limited
CIN-UAS203DL20LEPTCEAZE9S
Maotes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Mote 24 ; Earning Per Share

Year ended Year ended
St March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
(a} Profitf|Loss) Avallable to Equity Sharehaldess [Rs. In lakhi) {651.32) {345.07]
(b Weighted sverage Number of Equity Shares 6,68, 10,000,00 f,68, 10,000,
[c} Mominal Value of Equity Sharas (in ) 10,00 10,00
(d] Basicand Diluted Earnings Per Share [[a)f{b) [inT) [0.57)| (0.52))

Mote 25 Operating Segment Information

The Company operates in only one sesgment, namely “Infrastructure development on Hybeld Annuity Model” hence there are no
reportable segments under Ind AS-108 "Segment Reporting’. Hence, separate business ssgment Information ks not applicable.

The directors of the company has been identified as The Chief Operating Decision Maker {CODM). The Chief Operating Decision
Maker also monitors the operating results as one single segment for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation
and performance assessment and hence, there are no additional disclosures to be provided other than those already provided in

the financl




PNC Aligarh Highways Private Limited
CIN-U4S203DL20IEPTCEI 2355
Motes to the Finandal Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Mote 26 1 Related Party Transactions
(A} List of Related Parties

{a] PFarent Entity

Ownership Interast

Mame Type As at As Bt
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Irrermeii holdi
BNC Infra Holdings Limited diirgont 100% 100%
COMpany
PMC Infratech Limited* Ultimate halding - .
* Hoid 10 Equity Shares.
[B) Transactions Betweon Related Parties
The following transactions were carrlied ouft with the related parties in the ardinary course of business during the Year-,
{¥ In Lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
5r N Natuwre of Transactio
. : March 31, 2025 | March 31,2024
i Utility Shifting
PMNC Infratech Limited 1,796.54 5840
2 Purchase of Material & Assets
FNC Infratech Limited 42.53 12.28
3 Hire Charges
FHC Infratech Limited 360 38.40
[C ) Balance Qutstanding During the Year;-
(¥ in Lakhs)
Bs at A at
5 Mo Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
1 Unsecurad Loan
PHC Infratech Limited B.4159.00 6,419.00
2 [Trade Payables
PHC Infratech Limited 15886 B4.35
i  |Retentbon Payable
PNC Infratech Limited 0.66
{D) Compensation to Key Managerial Persen:-
{7 in Lakhs)
Year ended ‘tear ended
5r. No Particulars
‘ March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
i Ankita Agarwal 155 1.08

(E} Terms and Conditions

The transactions with the related parties are made on term equivalent to those that presvail in arm’s length transactions. The

H!t::m:n each financial year through examining the finandal position of the related party and in the market in which
the relate * _' "te:. All outstanding balances will b ed in cash.

[ !
|| -

7 & o &



FMC Aligarh Highways Private Umited
CIN-UH S0 A0 BPTCI32 3095
Motes to the Anandal Statemeonts for the Year Endod March 31, 2025

Mot 27 | Fair Valus Messuramant
On Comgparisan by davs of carying amauwsts and far value of the company’s financial instrumenis, the carngdng amaurt of the fanancial instruments reasonable approodmabes fair value,

Financial imstrnaments by Catogory

% in Lakhs}
ke As ot March 31, 2025 Bs at March 31, 2024
Amonitsed Cost FVTPL FVTOC Amartised Cost FVTPL FVTOC
ryice Conpesslon Recehvables 30,500,681 - . 8,135,26 . -
: 160,29 ; : 1,036.19 : .
s 13,236,351 : . EGTE.94
7.360.56 L - 4,314.85 > .
598.E1 . . 248.23 —
39,020.57 1303631 5 44,714.52 H,G08.94 -
Barmowings 47,853.55 - s 50,726.10 . -
& Finareia! Lisbilitees 1,751.56 : - £16.29 - -
Tradk Payables 17715 . - 105.14 . -
Totsl Financial Labilities a9, R91.26 - . §1,447.53 : -

(i Fair Value Hierarchy
This section explains 1he podpements and astimates made in dl!llll'l'l'lhlrl‘ thie fair values of the fnancial instrimments that are measured a1 amortised cost and for which fair valiaes are discinsed in

financial stabements. To pravide an indication about the reliability of inputs used In determining fair walues, the group has classified its fmancial instruments into theee levels preicribed under the
accounting standands,

The fedowing tabde pravides the fakr value measuremient hierarchy of Cempany's assat and lablities, grouped mto Leval 1 to Level 3 as described balow (-

Lewed 1:  Quoted (unadpusted| market prices in active markets for Identical azsets or liabilities
Lisved 30 Valuation techaigues for which the loweit bevol input that k significant to the fair valus measurement s directly or indirectly observable.
Lewed Xt Valuation tecknlques for which the lowest bevel input that s signalicant to the fair valoe measurement |5 unchservahle.

(T in Lakhs]
Falr Walug Megiorement I.Hl! .
Particulars Suvyleg Valos Quated Price in Observable nobservabie
March 31, 2025 PR, i g
{Level 1) {Level 2| [Lovel 3}
&) Fimancial Assets and Lisbilities Measured ot Amortised Cost|
far Which Fair Vabues are Disclosed at March 31, 2028
1] Financial Assets
Service Concession Recehvables 30,900.81 . 30,500.81
Investments = 13,235.31 = =
== = Total 30, 500.01 13, 736.31 30,900.81 :
{ii] Financial Liabilithes -
Boerowings oy 47 86355 . 47 BEA.55 -
Other Financial Labidities LT 302871 i 200871
L Toul] 49,892.26 = 49,852.26 :




PHEC Allgarh Highways Private Limited
CIN-LS 20300 16PTCI32395
Motes to the Finsncial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

[ in Lakhs)
Fair Value Measurement using
Particulars mm Quoted price In Dbservable nobservabde
Active Market Imputs Inpusts
(tevel 1) fLevel 2) (Levet3)
[A) Financial fssets snd Lisbilities Measured 8t Amortised Cost|
for Which Fair Values are Disclossd at March 31, 2024
{1} Finamciad Assets
Serwice Concession Receivables %9,115.26 . 39,115.26 .
Irvastments - L6804 - -
Tatal! 39,115.26 B,698.94 39,115.26 %
(i) Financial Liatilities
Barrowings §0,726.10 - 50,726.10 -
Oither Firancial Linbilities 72143 : 72143 .
Tatal| 51,847.53 " 51,847.51 .

(i) Vahmtion Technigues Used to Determine Fair Valoe

The Campany mairtsing policies and procedunes to value fmandial assets or financial labidities using the best and most relevant data avadabile, The fair values of the financlal assens and llabdities are
included at the amaunt that woold be received to sell an ass=t or pald to trangfer o labllity B oan ordedy transaction betwesn market pariticipants ot the measarement date

Thie Falleading Method snd Assumptions sre Used to Extimate Falr Values:

The Carrying amaounts of trsde piyatiles, shom term bBarrowings, eash #nd cash equivalents, shart perm deposiis/retentions, expendes payable gir. aoe consicered 1o e thesr fair value ; due (o their
short teem Riture,

Long-tevm fiwed-rate and varabde-rate recelvables / borrowings are evaluated by the Company based an parameters such as Interest rates, specific courrtry rizk factors, credit rsk and other rlsk
characteristics. For borrorving far value i determingd by using the discounted cash flow (DCF) methad using discount rate that roflects the kssuar's barresings rate. Risk of non-perfarmance far the
company |5 corsldered to ba nsignificant in valuation,

The fair value of trade recebvables, security depasis and retentions are evaluated on parametars pach as interest rate and obhar rikk factors. Fair value & being determoned by using the discourted cath
Flow {DCF).

Firancial atuets and this at fair value and the smount k& the falre
iktie: carrying
Ny ,

B 9 ot 4




PC Aligarh Highways Private Limited
CIN-U45203DL20LRPTCIA23GS
Motes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Mote 28 : FINANCIAL RISK MANAGERMENT

The Company's principal financial liabilities, other than darivatives, comprise borrowings, trade and other payables. The makn purpose of these financial llabilities is to manage finances for
the Comparny’s operathons. The Company principal financial aseet includes laan , trade and other recelables, and cath and short-term disposits that arise directly fram (12 operations.

The Company's activities are exposad to Market Risk, Credit Rick and Liguidity Rizk

I. Market Risk
Miarhat rigk is the risk that the falr value or future cash flows of a financlal Instrurment will luctuate because of changes in market prices. Market prices comgprise three types of risk:
currency rate risk, interast rate risk and other price risks, such as equity price risk and commodity price risk, Financlal instrurnents affected by market risk include loans snd borrowings,
deposits, Investments, and dervative financial instruments.
{a) Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk ks company's cash flow and profit on acesint of mavemant in market terast rates, For the company Interest risk adses mainly from interest Bearing borrawings which
are at floating rates, To mitigate Interest rate risk, the company closely monitors market risk.

(i} Interest Risk Exposura (¥ in Lakha)
s at March 31, As at March 31,
Particul
i 2025 024
Variable Rate Borrowings 41 444.55 A4 30710
{il] Interest Rate Sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sansitivity to a reasonably possibde change in interest rate on that portian of borrowing alfected. With all other wariable held constant, the
company's profit before tax is affected through the Impact of change In interest rate of borrowing as follows-

¥ In Lakhsa)
Increase/decrease In|  Effect on profit
Particulars
basis polnts before tax
Karch 21,2025 +500-50 -207.22/207.22
March 31,2024 +50-50 -27154/221.54
(k) Foreign Currency Risk

The Company by nature does not operates internationally and as the Company has not obtained any foreign cwrrency bpans and sl doesn't have any foreign curfency trade payables
and foreign recehvables outstanding therefore, the company is not exposed to any forelan exchange risk,

(€} Price Risk N
The company exphsuefe to nri:ér_l'il\!.laxlses from Inwestrments in various 5:!1&5 of mutual funds, Theds inastiments are sctively traded in the market and are held for

short perlod of @ 0 i’f

! - I.
Il '3 % '} o
L et b,



PHC Aligarh Highways Private Limited
CIN-UAS203DL201BFTCFI2305
Nates to tha Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Credit Risk

Crefit Fiak arizes fram the poddilility that the counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial Ioss 1o the company. Ta manage this, the Campany perindically
assesses the financial reliability of customers, taking Into accownt the financial conditions, current econamic trends, and anabysis of historical bad debts and ageing of accounts
recelvahble.

The comgany has only one trade recievables that a company has are against the the grant to be reciewed, which is a goverment authority therefore company is not exposed 1o any
credit risk. Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents i3 limited as we generally invest in deposits with banks and financial institutssng with high credit ratings adsigned by International and
domestic cradit ratine asencies.

Liguldity Risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that cormpany will not be able to settle or meet its obligation on time or at a reasonable price. The Company's objective is to at all times malntain
aptimum levels of liguidity to meet ts cash and collateral requdrements, The Compary's management is responsible for lguldiey, funding as well s settlement management, In addition,
processes and palicies related to such risk are overseen by senkor management, Management monitors the company's net Bguidity position through rolling, forecast on the basis of
axpacted cash fiows.

The tabde below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial [abiFties at the reporting date based on contractual undisoounted payments:

(¥ in Lakhs)
Lk kb Bore than one year
As at March 31, 2025 Corrying Armount O Diemand Ot Vabe and less than three  More than 3 Years Total
Yopr
Borrowings 47.853.55 = 3,187.50 7.813.50 36,B63.55 47, EGI.55
Trade Payable AT7.15 - 7715 . . 27115
Total 48,140.70 - 3,464.65 7.E12.50 36,863.55 48,140.70
(¥ in Lakhs)
e More than one year
As at March 31, 2024 Carrying Amount On Demand T and less thanm three  More than 3 Years Taotal
yaar
Borrowings 50,726.10 - 2875.00 7,000.00 40,851,10 50,726,10
Trade Payabie 105,14 - 105,14 . - 105.14
Total 5083124 - Z.980.14 7.000.00 40,B51.10 50,831.24

Mote 28 : Contigent {g.up,wm iﬂd Commitments [to the extend not provided for)-
Y '

i ]



PMC Allgarh Highways Private Limited
CIN-U45Z2030L2018PTC3323495

Motes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Mote 30 ; Capital Managemaant

The primary objective of the Company’s Capital Management is to maximize the shareholder value and also maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce cost of capital. In order to manage the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend
paid to sharehodders, return on capital to shareholders, Bsue new shares or sell assets to reduce debits.

Thie Company managss its capital structure and makes adjustment in light of changes in economic condition and the requirements of
tha financial covenants, if &y, The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus

debt.

[Tin Lakhs Expect Ratio)

As at As at
il March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024

Total Borrowings [excluding unsecured boan taken from related party refer Note No-26) 41,444.55 44,307.10
Less- Cash & Cach Eguivalents 3,118.66 e
Debt (A} 38.325.90 44,234.25
Equity Share Capital {including unsecured loan taken from refated party refer Note No- 13,100.00 13,100.00
Other Equity {2,272.18) {1,620.88)
Total Equity (B) 1082781 11,479.12
Debt to Equity ratio [A/8) 3.54 3.85

Mote-31 Concession Arrangements- Main Featuras

il Name of the Concession

i) Description of Arrangements

i) significant Term of Arrangemnts

PHC Aligarh Highways Private Limited

Development of four laning of Aligarh-Kanpur Section from
km, 186.000{Design Chainage 195.733) to km 225.000

(Desipn Chainge 240,897 (PRG-Il from Bhadwas- Kalyanpur)

af MH-91 in the state of Uttar Pradesh en Hybrld Annuity Mode
under Bharatmala Pariyajna,

Parlod of Concession: 15 years from COD

Construction Period : 730 days

Remuneration: Annuity, Interest, D&M

Irvestment grant from Concession grantor: Yes
Infrastructure return 1o grantor at end of Concession | Yes
Investment and renewal obligation: No

Repricing datas- Half yearly for OEM basis upon which
repricing or re negotiation is determined @ Inflation price
index as defined in concession agreement,

Note-32 Unsecured loan of $6419.00 Lakhs taken by the company from related partyl Ultimate Parent Company] |s in Beu of equity
as per terms of Concesshon Agreement dated June 08,2018, which is miterest free,

Terms of Repayment for Unsecured Loan from Related Party
{i} Unsecured Loan taken is interest free and shall be repeybale subject bo prior approval of lenders after complying the conditions as

stiplulated in their sanction.

Mote-33 Detalls of loan given, investrnents made and guarntees given covered Ufs 186 of the Companies Act, 2013,

The Company is engaged in the business of providing infrastrucal facilities as specified under Schedule Vi of the Companies Act 2013,
fthe "Act") and hence the provision of section 1E6 of the' Act related to loany gaurntees given or securities provided are not
applicable to the Company., There are no investments made by the Company during the period.

Hnt:l’-!ﬂ ﬁgureé-'i:'i,?.l':__. e previcus period have b

o
o] o

i?i regroupad frearranged, whereever necessary to confirrn the current year



PNC Aligarh Highways Private Limited
CIN-U452030L2018PTC332395

Motes to the Financial Statements for the Yesr Ended March 31, 2025

Note 35 -The distlosure is required by INDAS-19 * Employes Benefits” are as under-
The Liability for Employes Gratuity is deteremined on acturial valuation wsing Projected wnit credit method.
The obligation are as under-

Table 1: Membar Data Statistics
{¥ in Lakhs)
Far the year gnding
5No, Particulars 31032015 3105-2024
1 |Mumnmber of Employess 49 59
2 |Mormal Retirement Age A &0
1 |Average Age (in yrs) 37,19 36.75
4 |Average Fast Service (in yrs) 4.78 I1.E0
5 |Average Monthly Salany (i R 13,841 14,505
& |Future Service [in yrs) 2261 2335
7 [Weighted Average duration of DBO 388 3.88
Table 2: Benefits Valused
1 |Eligibdlity All perrnanent employess
2 |Gratuity Salary Basic Monthly Salary
Completed years of service, ssrvice of 6
3 |Service manths & above i rounded as one year
4 [Mindmum westing period 5 Years of continuows service
15/26*Service * Gratulty Salany, subject
5 |Mormal Retirernent Benafit lsa 20,00, %
6 |Death/Disability In Service Benefit Same a5 normal retirement benefit
" - |Iflewrs after & years of continuous
a
L sk itk service = Normal Retirement Benefit.

Table 3; Significant Actuarial Assumptions

n @) | ) & v ¥ A

(¥ in Lakhs)
For the year ending
5N
o. Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2028
1 |Discount Rate 5558 6.56%
1 [Expected Retum on Plan Assets 0.00% 0.00%
3 |salary Escalation Rate (pa.) 5.00%, 5. 00
4  JAtirition Rate (p.a.) I5.00% 25.00%
100% of 100 of
* [icislny e LM 12-14 BALM 12-14
A 6 [Disabllity Rate Ko explicit No explicit




PMC Aligarh Highways Private Umited

CIMN-U4S 203 I018PTCIIRAGE
Motes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025
Valuathon Disclosure Tables (¥ in Lakhs)
Tabie 4: Change in Defined Benefit Obligation
01-04-2024 To 01-04-2023 T
igge S o 31-03-2025 31.03-2024
1 Defined benefit obligation at beginning of year 15.36 1x.07
1 [SErvice cost .
a. Cierrent sendce cost 119 .61
b, Past service codt - vested . -
¢, Past service cost - unwestad - -
3 IMEErasl &K piendes 107 0.84
4 |Cash flows -
a. Benedit payrments fram plan . .
b, Benafit payments from amployer
g Actuarial Gaing and Logses
a, Effect of changes i demographic assumgtions - -
b, Effect of charges in financial assurnption D:217 .02
€. Effect of experience adjustmienty {2.36) (015)
& |Transfer in fOut x
i Transfer In
b, Transfer out
7 |Defined banefit ablipation at end of year 1657 15,36
Bifurcaticn of the present value of obligation at the and of the year (T in Lakhs)
Particulars 31-03-2025 31-03-2024
Current Obdigations E fo | 3.29
Mon-Current Obligations 12 .85 12.07
Total Obligation 1657 15.36
Table 5: Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets
(Tin Lakhs)
el 01-04-2024 To 01-04-2023 To
iz ks 31-03-2025 31-03-2024
i Fair value of plan aszseis at beginning of year =,
1 |Deher Adjustments 5
31 |Charges and Taxes =
4 |Expocted retwrn on plan assets
5 Cashflows
&, Total employer's cantribution
{i} Employer contributions

(i) Empleyer direct bensfit payments

b, Benefit payments from plan assets

c. Benefit payments from employer
Actuarisl Gadng and Losses &n Plan Addets

a. Effect of changes in financial assumptions
b, Effect of sxperience adjustments
Transfer In /Out

& Tranaler in

=413, Trarsfar out

e of plan assets ot end of year
3l Return On Plan Assets




PMC Aligarh Highways Private Limited
CIN-LMS030L 201 EPTCI3 2395
Maotes to the Financial Statemants for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Takle 6: Amounts recognized [n the Balance Sheet

in
01-04-2024 To 01-04-2023 To
AN bt 31-03-2025 31-03-2024
1 |Defined benefit obligation 1657 15.36
2 [Fair value of plan assets - -
3 |Funded status - Deficit! [(Surplus) 16.57 15.36
& |[EHect of asser celling - -
5 |Met defined benefit - |Liability}/ Asset (1557 {15.36]
Tabla 7: Net Periodic benefit cost recognized in the Prafit and Loas
(% in Lakhs)
X 01-0a-20248 T 01-04-2023 To
5.HMo. Partioudars 31032025 31032024
1 |Currest Senvice Cost 1.9 1.0l
7 Interest Expanse « Obligation 1.07 0.84
3 |imterest (Income} - Plan Assats - -
4  |Past Service Cost - -
5 |Met Periodic benefit cost recognized in the P & L 1.36 346
Table B: Re-measunement
[ in Lakhs]
01-04-2024 To 031-04-2023 To
e Burtieolsts 31.03-2025 31.03.2024
1 Actuarial {Gaing]) Losses on obligationd [2.14] {0.16)
2 Beturn on Plan Assets, excluding amount recognized in the net
inkerest aapensa
i |Change kn Asset Celling - -
4 |Re-measurement Cost/ (Credit] for the year [2.14] (016}
Table %; Balance Sheet Reconcilliation
{7 in Lakhs)
01-04-2024 To 01-04-2023 To
e Faricuing 31-03-1025 31-03-2024
1 [|Met defined benefit (liability) asset st beginning of year {15.36] {1207}
2  |Unrecognized past sendoe cost &t the beginning of the year . .
3 |Expense Inthe PR L {2.36) (3.46)
4 Total Remeasurements inciuded in OC] 2.14 016
5  [Employer's Total Contribution - -
& |Met tronsfer = .
7 |uUnrecognbsed past service cost 3t the end of the year . -
8  [Met defined benefit [liability] asset & at end of year [16.57] i15.36]
Tablell: Expected Future Cashflows & Discontinuance Liabdivy
{% in Lakhs)
1 |Expected emphoyer contributions Next year 115
2 Dizeantinuance liability 20,72
- Expected Benefit
5MNo Maturity Profile of Defined Benafit Obligation S
i 2R 195
| 2037 3,35
3 2038 2.73
4 2029 2.68
P T T 2030 2.0
T 2031 - 2036 4.78
- e

« o

Gt




PNC Aligarh Highways Private Limited
CIN-LM52030L2018PTCIZ2395
MNotes o the Financial Statemants for the ¥ear Ended March 31, 2025

Table 11: Recogristion of Past Service Cost

(X in Lakhs)
01-04-2024 To 01-04-3023 To
e st 31-03-2025 31-03-2024
1 |Unrecognized Past Senice Costf{Credit] as at the beginning of the - -
i Paar Sergice Cost (Credit] for the year - -
3 |Past Service {Cost)f Credit recognized during the year - -
4 |Unrecognized Pagt Senvice Cost/|Credit) as 8t the end of year - .
Tabbe 12: Major Categoriet of Flan Asseto(as a % of botal Plan Adgerd)
[T im Lakhs)
For the year endi
e P 31.03-2025 a:g-mn
1 [Government of India Securities 0.00% 0.00%
2 |State Government Securities .00 0.0r%
3  |High Quality Corporate Bonds 000 0.00%
4 |Eguity shares of listed companies 000 01.00%
E  |Froperty 0.00% 0.00%
6 [|Special Depaosit Scheme 0.00% 0.00%
7 |Funds managed by insurer 0.00% 0.00%
B |Cethers (to specify] (0 0.0
g Total [R5 0.00%

Table 13: Sensitivity of Defined Benelit Obligation [DEO] to key assumptions

The financial results are sensitive 1o the attuaral assumptions. The changes to the Defined Benefit Ohdigations fio
Increase and decrease from assumed salary escalation, withdrawal and discount rates are given below:

{¥ in Lakhs)
£ g, Scenarin Dao Warlatbon
1 |Umder Base Scenario 16.57 0.00%
2 |58lary Increase fate - Plus 100 Basis Points 17.06 2.91%
3 |5atary Increase Aate - Minus LD Basis Points 1611 -1.77%
4 |Withdrawal Rate - Plus 100 Basis Points 16.54 -0.22%
£ [Withdrawal Rate - Minus 100 Bazis Points 1661 hL21%
B |Discount Rate - Plus 100 Basis Polnts 16.05 -3.14%
7 Rate - Minus 100 Basis Points 17.13 3.36%




PNC Aligart Highways Privabe Limited
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Motes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Table 14: Risk Exposure

Frovision of a defined benefit scheme posas cartain nsks as companies take on uncertain kong term obligations to
make future pension payments as follows:

Liakility Risks

Risk if there i a mismatch bn the duration
of the pssets relative to the [iabilities. By
maiching duration with the defined
benefit  liab#ities, the company &
| |Asset-Liability Mismatch Risk successfully able to neutralite waluation
swings caused by imierest  rate
movements. Hence companies  are
encouraged to  adopt  asset-llabilitg

jmanasement

‘Variations in the discount rate used o
compute  the prasent walup of the
Babilivies may seem small, but in practice

il |Discownt Rate Risk

can have a significant impact on the
defined benefit labilities,

Since price inflation and salary growth are
finked ecanomically, they are cormbined
|rnr discleiure purpoes. Riting salares
will often result in higher future defined
benofit payments resulting in 2 higher
present wvalue of fabilitles especially
unexpected salary increases provided at
management's  discretion may lead to
estimation uncertzinties ncreasing this

il JFuture Salary Escalation and inflation Risk -

risk.

é

|Unfunded Plan Risk

2 This represents unmanaged risk and a growing labdlity. There is an inherent risk here that the company may
default on paying the benefits in adverse circurmstances. Funding the plan removes wolatility from the balance

&




PHE Aligarh Highways Private Limited
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Motes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Mote 36 : The disclosure is reguined by INDAS-10 “Emploves Berafits™ are a5 undier-
The Bablliny for Employes Leave Plan B detereminded on acturial valustion using Frajected unlt credit method.

Tahle £: Member Data Statistics

(@ in Lakhs)
For tha year end!
= Particulars 31-03-1025% SL-II:!!;-!DI#
1 Humber of Employesas 45 59
2 Narmad Aetiremaert Age & &0
3 Average Age [in yrs 3134 35.75
d Average Monthly Encashiment Salary 13, 841 14,505
5 Total Leave balance {in days) 623,19 702.26
[} Weighted Auverage duration of DEO 388 3.88
Table ; Benefits Valued
1 Type of Plan Cher l.un.:?ln'n Berefits
2 Narmal Ratiresmant Ape &0
E] Salary for calculation of leave encashment Basic
a Salary for calculation of l&ave svailiment MNOT Used
5 Type of leawe vahued Privilege Leave
& Cap on leaws accumulation 45 Duryd
7 Encashment during employmant Mot Allcwed
B Days I a month (for alcubtions) 0 days
q fearrmal Retirement Benefis 130 x salary x number af unuied
10 Death in Service Benefit same a5 normal retirement
11 Leaving Service Benefit same a5 normal retirement
12 Avallment Pattern A
13 Encashment in service - Pattern A
Table 3: Significant Actuarial Assumptions
[T in Lakhus)
For the year ending
S.hg. Farticulars 31032025 31-03-2004
1 Discount Aate 6.55% 6OE%
2 Expactad Retwrn on Plan Assets 0,005 {00
3 Salary Escalation Rate [pa.) 5.00% 5.00%
4 Attrition Rate (p.a.) 25.00% 25.00%
5 Martality Rate OO0 | AL FO0 24 100 1ALkl 2052
14 14
[ Disabality Rate Mo explicit Mo eplicit
Leawe Avallment and Encashment Assumptions
1 __|Avallment Rate - {in days ) - -
=T 200 {Emgashment Rate - {in days }




PNC Afigarh Highways Private Limited
CIN-U4520IDL20IBPTCIZZAGS
Mobes to the Finandal Staterments for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Valuation Disclogure Tables
Tﬂ;hszﬁu"rhhﬂmdmtlﬂzhn Fhuklﬁi
01-08-2024 To 01-04-2023 To
i gt il 31.03-2015 31-03-2024
1 Defined benefit poligation st baginning of year 3,565 3.0%
2 Service Cost -
&, Clsrnant Sendios cost 1.47 1.51
. PRST SETVIDE COSE - vested - 0.09
. Pt sErvice cost - unvested . .
3 Inlerest expenses 0.25 0.22
4 Canh M .
. Benefit paymends from plan .
b Benefit payments from emploger a
5 Aruarial Gains and Losses -
a. Effect of changes in demographic assumptions - -
b Effect of chamnges in financial assurmptions 0.04 0.00
. Effect of experience adjustments §2.09) 1.36)
& Transfes In fOuw -
&, Transler In -
. TrarsFer out . -
7 Defined h-eru:ﬁ'[ﬂhlli.lﬂﬂn at end of year 3,12 3,55
Bifurcation of the present value of obligation 3t the end of the year {T in Lakhs)
Particulars 31-03-2025 31-03-2024
Current DbEgations 0.ES 0.95
Nar-Currert Uhﬂpl&nﬂ!. 247 .70
[ Tatal Obligation 3,12 165
(T in Lakhs)
Liakdlity Spdit 31-03-T025 31-03-20F4
Shaort Term - -
Long Term - 3165
atal Obligation 5 .65
Tahle B2 Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets
(¥ in Lakhs)
O1-04-2034 To | 01-04-2023 To
s For he yun; 31-03-2025 31-03-2024
1 E:Il valuse of plan assets at beginning of yaar = =
2 Other Adjusiments H 1
3 Charges and Taxes = =
i Expected return on plan assets - -
g Cazhflows
3, Total employer's contributhon
{1} Emplowear contrbuations L <

{1} Empleyer direct Benefit payments

b. Benefit payments from plan assets

€. Benefit payments from emplayer
Actisarial Gaing and Losses on Plan Assets
B a. Effect of changas in financlal assumptions
b, Effect of experience agjustments

7 Transfar In /Out

a. Transfes In

b, Transfer out

B Fair vadue of plam assets at end of year
Actual Retern On Plam Assels

& o r}( A




PNC Aligarh Highways Private Limited
CIN-UAS 20301 201 BPTCI2 K0S
Mates to the Financial Staternents for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Tabie 7: Amounts recognized in the Balance Sheet

(¥ in Lakhs)
01-04-2024 T | 01-04-2023 Ta
S.HNao. For the year 31032025 31-03-2004
1 Defimed benefit obligation 133 1E%
i Fair vaiue of pian asdets . .
3 Funded status - Deficity (Sarplus) 3.3 365
a Actuarial {Gains} and Losses - on Obligations {2.065) i1.35)
5 Actuariad Gains and (Losses) - on Plan Assers - -
6 [Metdefined benefit - (Liabifity)/ Asset {332 {3.65)
Table 8: Net Periodic benefit cost recognized (n the Prafit snd Loss
(2 in Lakhs)
0d-04-2024 To | 01-04-2023 Ta
5l Fox Shhe raie 31-03-2025 31-03-2024
1 Current Sandce Cosr 147 LBl
T Interest Expense - Obligation 0.3g 0.22
3 nterest (Incoame) - Plan Acsets . -
4 Past Service Cost . .00
5 Actuarial {Gains) and Losses - on DbEgations PR {1.35)
51 Actuarial Gaing and (Logses) - on Plan Assate . -
7 et Periodic benafit cost recagnized in the P &L t0.33)] 0.57
Tahke 9: Balance Sheel Reooncilliation
{Tin Lakhs)
01-04-2024 To | O1-04-2023 To
i P Ky 31-03-2025 | 31-03-2024
1 Met defined benefit {lability) asset at baginning of year [3.65) [3.09)
I Experise Inthe P L 033 (057
3 Employes’s Total Cantributon . -
4 Met transler . .
5 Met defined benefit [Habilicy| asser a0 at end nly:ir ﬁl,.aﬂ (3.65]
Table 10 Expected Future Cashflows B Discontinuance Liabdlity
[T in Lakhs)
1 Esparted 14T
5.Na Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation Expected Benefit
Payment
1 2026 091
. 2027 .71
3 2028 .56
4 paia 0.43
5 2030 0.39
B 2031 = 035 0.78
7 hlj'ﬂnl:l 2035 0.31
Table 11: Major Categories of Plan Assets(as a % of total Plan Assets)
For tha year ending
i i 31-03-202% 31-03-2024
1 Governmaent of India Securities 0,005 000
2 State Government Securities 0.00% L0
3 High Quality Cosparate Bands 0.00% 0.00%
4 Equity shares of listed companies 0.00% 0000
5 Property 0.00% (L0
6 Special Deposik Schama 0LD0% 0.00%
7 naged by Insirer 000 0.00%
& h { CLOO% 0.00%
;:f_.:‘-i < 0.00% 0.00%
+ |
.-I_-.'-'_.' @ M ['_f’lel




PNC Adigarh HigPways Private Lirmites
CINUAS0IDLI0LEPTCIZZ RS
Motes to the Financial Staternents for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Table 12: Sensitivity of Defined Benefit Obfigation (DBOJ to key assumplions (T bn Lakhs)

The firancial results are sansithve to the actuarial assemptions. The changes to the Defined Banefit Obligations for
increase and decrease from assumed satary escalation, withdrasal and discount rates are given below:

5.ho. Soenario ][4 Wariation
1 Undar Base Scenano 3.32 D.OD%
2 Salary increase Rate - Plus 100 Basis Points 341 2508
3 Salary Increase Rate - Minus 100 Basis Points 3249 -2ATH
4 ‘Withdrawal Rate - Plus 100 Basis Points 3.33 0L21%
k1 Withdrawal Rate - Binws 100 Basis Points 3.3 ~0.23%
& Discownt Rate - Plus 100 Basis Pointe 3713 -2 B7%
7 Discount Rate - Mines 100 Basis Points 342 307%




PHC Aligarh Highways Private Limited
CIN-LMST0A0LI0LAFTCI32395
Notes to the Finandial Statements for tha Fear Ended March 31, 2025

Moie 37! Rathees
The Are ratlos far the endiil March 31, 2025 and March 31, b024
Yoar pnded Exalansth 5
5. No. Particulars Miarch 31, | March 31, | Varance variance if = 25%
2028 | 2024 %)
1 |Current Ratio (times] icabiz
[Camrant assets dhided by current kit | 8 i iy ot A
1 |Debt-Ecuity Ratio {times) )
{Lorg-term borrowings, Shert-term h-mulma:ardmnl rrﬂliw'fh::ufhlﬂu'm
barmowing: excluding unsscured borrowing taken and cutstanding from ultimato R 3.88 84 Hat Applicable
halding company(le. PHEC infratech Limited) divided by total eguity indueding
D.E8 0.56 158 Hot Applicable
goz)| (aon|  vema x’;":i"un'.‘: 1;:":::
{Coat of Goods soid dhvided by Average inventory)
Cost of Goods sokd = Cost of materials consumed + Contract Paid + Constrection " e Mt Sppicatie
| lewpenses
B |Trade Recelvable Turnover Ratio [times) B T =
{Revenue from operation divided by Sverage Trade Recetvable including senice 17 L% F. £1.75 i
Conoessioon receivakbils] rﬁ'@ "Eh.a WA
T  |Trade Payable Tumower Batio (times) COmEary mage
Purchae divided by fve Creditor] 1128 401 181.35 1he payment to Trisde
8 |Mat Capltal Turnower Ratio (Hmes]
[Revenue from opevation divided by working capitallworking cophial refers io met o37| oz (zaem| D"":m i
(oss|  (673| ssas ‘E‘;‘“::tm’i:'emﬁfq
933 A78 .30 Not Applicable
naof  os| pesas) :::IL;“I ”’“"1'}"_"';“:
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